
Executive Member Decisions

Friday, 15th March, 2019
Time Not Specified

AGENDA

1.  Proposed Traffic Regulation Order - Red Route on A678 
and surrounding roads
Proposed TRO - Red Route EMD
Proposed TRO - Red Route EIA
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

2 - 12

2.  Speed Limit Consolidation Order
Speed Limit Consolidation Order EMD
Speed Limit Consolidation Order EIA
Appendix 1
Appendix 2

13 - 27

3.  LED Lighting Schemes Darwen
LED Lighting Schemes Darwen EMD
LED Lighting Schemes Darwen EIA

28 - 31

4.  St.Aidans Complex Need Unit
St. Aidens Complex Needs Unit EMD
Extension to St Aiden's Short Break Service EIA

32 - 37

Date Published: Date Not Specified 
Harry Catherall, Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



EMD: V3/18 Page 1 of 2

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for Regeneration

LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Environment and Operations

DATE: 11th February 2019

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Regeneration                                  

WARD/S AFFECTED: Audley and Queens Park                                   Blackburn Central

SUBJECT: Proposed Traffic Regulation Order – Red Route on A678 and surrounding roads                  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
To seek approval from the Executive Member for Regeneration of the proposal to make permanent 
an experimental Traffic Regulation Order as detailed below 
A678 and surrounding roads...................Red Route

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Executive Member:
Authorise the Director of HR, Legal & Governance to advertise the making permanent of a previously 
experimental Traffic Regulation Order as per the attached schedule. 

3. BACKGROUND
Red Routes operate as a No Stopping and No Loading restriction except in marked and signed bays 
and can be enforced by the police and via CCTV as well as by CEO’s.

The scheme covers the main route from Larkhill, Eanam Roundabout through to Accrington Rd and 
Gorse St.

The scheme has been operating since October 2017 and we are now in a position to make the order 
permanent. For further background information see Appendix 3 Executive Member Decision Form 
relating to the experimental order.

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS
No risks arising from this proposal have been identified.  The proposal is of benefit to the social and 
economic well being of the Borough.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The proposal to make and revoke Traffic Regulation Orders requires delegated approval from the 
Executive Member for Regeneration and Chief Officer.  Traffic Regulation Orders are required to be 
published in the local press and on site to comply with the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984.  
Directly affected properties are consulted in line with current procedure.

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



EMD: V3/18 Page 2 of 2

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The cost of making and advertising this Traffic Regulation Order will be approximately £2000 and will 
be funded from the Highways maintenance budget.

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The necessary legal powers to implement this scheme are within the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS
Members of the public were given the opportunity to object to or comment on the proposal during 
the first six months of its life.  No comments or objections have been received.

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

VERSION: 1

CONTACT OFFICER: Gina Lambert

DATE: 11th February 2019

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

Appendix 1 - schedule
Appendix 2 -  plans
Appendix 3 – Executive Member Decision Form relating to the experimental 
order.

Page 3



Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.  

The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs.

Service area 
& dept. Traffic Date the activity will 

be implemented 28/02/2019

 Brief 
description 
of activity

Proposed Traffic Regulation Order – Red Route Furthergate area making an experimental order 
permanent

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA
Checklist question

Answers 
favouring not 
doing an EIA

Does this activity involve any of the following:
- Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes☐  Yes
- Change to existing Council policy/strategy

☒  No

☐  Yes Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? ☒  No

☐  No
☐  Not sure

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? ☒  Yes

Does this activity:
☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act 
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not 
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low)

☒  No

FOR =0 TOTAL AGAINST =6

Will you now be completing an EIA? ☐ Yes ☒ No
The EIA toolkit can be found here 

Assessment Lead Signature

E&D Lead Signature Gwen Kinloch

Date 07/02/2019

Page 4

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584


The Red Route (Main road items)
Street Side Extent
Burnley Road, Blackburn Both sides From a point approximately 10m north of its junction 

with Gorse Street to its junction with Furthergate
Accrington Road, Blackburn Both sides From the centre line of Didsbury Street to its end-on 

junction with Furthergate
Furthergate, Blackburn Both sides From its end-on junction with Accrington Road for its 

whole length.
Back Higher Audley Street, 
Blackburn

Both sides For its entire length

Bottomgate, Blackburn Both sides From its end-on junction with Furthergate to its end-
on junction with Copy Nook for its whole length

Copy Nook, Blackburn South side From its end-on junction with Bottomgate for its 
whole length

Copy Nook, Blackburn North side From its end-on junction with Bottomgate to a point 
approximately 3m west of its junction with Gate 
Street.

Copy Nook, Blackburn North side From its end-on junction with Higher Eanam for a 
distance of approximately 25m in an easterly 
direction.

Higher Eanam, Blackburn North side From its end-on junction with Copy Nook to its end-
on junction with Eanam

Higher Eanam, Blackburn South side From its end-on junction with Copy Nook to a point 
approximately 3m west of its junction with Culshaw 
Street

Higher Eanam, Blackburn South side From a point approximately 15m east of its junction 
with Higher Barn St to its end-on junction with 
Eanam.

Eanam, Blackburn Both sides From its end-on junction with Higher Eanam for its 
whole length.

Higher Audley St, Blackburn South side From its end-on junction with Copy Nook to a point 
approximately 20m west of its junction with Higher 
Barn St.

Higher Audley St, Blackburn North side From a point approximately 2m east of its junction 
with Eden St (New) to a point approximately 20m 
west of its junction with Higher Barn St

Higher Barn St, Blackburn East side From the centre line of Higher Audley Street for a 
distance of 40 metres in a northerly direction

Higher Barn St, Blackburn East side From its junction with Higher Eanam for a distance of 
approximately 25m in a southerly direction.

Higher Barn St, Blackburn West side From its junction with Higher Eanam to a point 
approximately 10m south of its junction with Wharf 

Page 5



St
Higher Barn St, Blackburn West side From its junction with Higher Audley St for 

approximately 35m in a northerly direction

The Red Route (Side road items)
Street Side Extent
Harwood St, Blackburn Both sides From its junction with Furthergate for a distance of 

approximately 50m in a northerly direction
Eden St (New) , Blackburn Both sides From its junction with Higher Audley St to a point 

approximately 10m north of its junction with Dock St
Eden St (Old) , Blackburn East side From its junction with Dock St for its entire length.
Eden St (Old) , Blackburn West side From its junction with Dock St for a distance of 

approximately 10m in a southerly direction
Dock St, Blackburn North side From its junction with Higher Eanam for a distance of 

approximately 10m in a north easterly direction.
Dock St, Blackburn North side From its junction with Eden St for a distance of 

approximately 10m in a westerly direction
Dock St, Blackburn South side From its junction with Higher Eanam to its junction 

with Eden St
Culshaw St, Blackburn East side From its junction with Higher Audley St to its junction 

with junction with Higher Eanam
Culshaw St, Blackburn West side From its junction with Higher Audley St for a distance 

of approx. 5m in a northerly direction
Culshaw St, Blackburn West side From its junction with Higher Eanam for a distance of 

approx. 5m in a southerly direction
Wharf St, Blackburn North side For its entire length
Wharf St, Blackburn South side From its junction with Higher Barn St for a distance 

of approx. 5m in a westerly direction.

Limited Waiting 8am to 6pm, 1 hour, No Return within 1 hour
Street Side Extent
Copy Nook, Blackburn North side From a point approximately 3m west of its junction 

with Gate St, to a point approximately 25m east of its 
end-on junction with Higher Eanam

Limited Waiting 8am to 6pm, 2 hours, No Return within 3 hours
Street Side Extent
Culshaw St, Blackburn West side From a point approximately 5m north of its junction 

Page 6



with Higher Audley St, to a point approx. 5m south of 
its junction with Higher Eanam

Higher Eanam, Blackburn South side From a point approximately 3m west of its junction 
with Culshaw St for a distance of 45m in a westerly 
direction

Higher Audley Street, 
Blackburn

North side From a point 12 metres east of the centre line of 
Culshaw Street for 10 metres  in a easterly direction

Higher Audley Street, 
Blackburn

North side From a point 12 metres west of the centre line of 
Culshaw Street for 10 metres  in a westerly direction

Higher Audley St, Blackburn North side From a point approximately 2m east of its junction 
with Eden St (New) to its junction with Higher Eanam

Eden St (Old), Blackburn West side From a point approximately 10m south of its junction 
with Dock St in a southerly direction for its remaining 
length.

Wharf St, Blackburn South side From a point approximately 5m west of its junction 
with Higher Barn St in a westerly direction for its 
remaining length.

Higher Barn St, Blackburn Both sides From a point approximately 5m south of its junction 
with Wharf St to a point approximately 35m north of 
its junction with Higher Audley St

No Waiting 8am to 6pm
Street Side Extent
Ordnance Street, Blackburn Both sides From a point 77 metres south of the centre 

line of Gate Street for 37 metres including 
the turning head 

Schedule of Revocations
Order Reference

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
WITH DARWEN (EANAM AREA, 
BLACKBURN) (TRAFFIC 

The entire Order

Page 7



MANAGEMENT AND REVOCATION) 
ORDER 2009

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
(VARIOUS STREETS) (NO. 2) 
(PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 
1984

Reference to Accrington Road both sides in 
schedule 1

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
(BURNLEY ROAD, BLACKBURN) 
(BUS STOPS CLEARWAY) ORDER 
1995

Reference to Bus Stop clearway Burnley Road in 
the schedule

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
(VARIOUS STREETS NO. 5) 
(PROHIBITION AND RESTRICTION 
OF WAITING) ORDER 1982 

Reference to Eden Street both sides in schedule 1

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
WITH DARWEN (VARIOUS 
STREETS) (NO 1) (PROHIBITION 
AND RESTRICTION OF WAITING 
AND REVOCATION) ORDER 2008

Reference to Back Higher Audley Street both sides 
in schedule 1

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN 
WITH DARWEN (VARIOUS 
STREETS) (NO.9) (PROHIBITION 
AND RESTRICTION OF WAITING 
AND REVOCATION) ORDER 2005

Reference to Culshaw Street in  schedule 6

Reference to Culshaw Street in Schedule 1

Page 8



Existing

Existing Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

Existing

ONL
Y

AHE
AD

ONLY
AHEAD

T

E

R

M

 
C

A

B

 
1

T

E

R

M

 C

A

B

 2

CONSULTATION

PUBLIC

PROPOSED EXTENTS OF
RESTRICTIONS

NTS CLP GL SS

10/10/17

Red Route Rev C T03

Pr
int

 D
ate

:

© Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd

Drawing Identifier
revision

Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd.
www.capitaproperty.co.uk

Project

Client

Drawing

Scale @ A3 Drawn Checked Approved

Project No. Date

Purpose of Issue

Classification

D:\Drawings\Furthergate Red Route.dwg

Rev Description DateDr
wn

Ch
k'd

Ap
p'd

CastleWay House, 17 Preston New Road, Blackburn, BB2 1AU
01254 273000

Highways

10
/10

/20
17

 16
:02

:39
 B

Y 
UT

MC

BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN B.C
TOWN HALL
BLACKBURN BB1 7DY

FURTHERGATE RED ROUTE

CS/092094

P
age 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Leeds and

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Leeds and

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
SO1

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
SO2

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
SO3

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
SO4

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
SO5

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
SO6

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
SO7

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SO8

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
SO9

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
SO10

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
SO11

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
SO12

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
SO13

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
SO14

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
SO15

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
SO17

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
TIE

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
KO

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
TIE

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
TIE

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
GST

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
MH CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
WSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
GSV

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
SAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Craft Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Leeds and Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Bus

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
The Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
136.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
QUARRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
BANCROFT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
ELEANOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
MANNER SUTTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
MAUDSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
HIGHER AUDLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Blackburn Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
123.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
BILLINGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
138.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
137.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
ADDINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
AVIEMORE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
SELKIRK

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
138.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
DALTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
St Thomas's Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
Jubilee Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
AUDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
BOTTOMGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
129.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Leeds and

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
127.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
139.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
Navigation Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
SKIDDAW STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
136.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
HIGHER EANAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
LAMBETH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
126.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
Navigation

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
ORDNANCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
EDEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
FORREST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
Paradise Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
137.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
GATE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
CULSHAW ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
134.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
132.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
133.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
PENDLE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
MILTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Builders Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
PW

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
THORN

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
Prospect House

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
Craft Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Leeds and Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
The Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
BANCROFT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
EANAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
WHARF STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
Blackburn Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
123.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
HIGHER BARN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Prospect House

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
145.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
BILLINGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
Mulberry Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
134.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
138.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
137.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
ADDINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
AVIEMORE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
SELKIRK

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
138.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
132.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
Government Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
BURNLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
St Thomas'

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
BOTTOMGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
138.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
Gorse Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
ACCRINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
HARWOOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
Working Mens

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
NEWTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
Mulberry Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
138.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
CHERRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
Cherry Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
FREDERICK ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
Chestnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
ST CLEMENT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
FURTHERGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
136.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
Mosque

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
DALTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
140.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
ST MARGARETS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
139.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
Health

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
Croston Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
CRABTREE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
137.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
135.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
146.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
MULBERRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
ST MARYS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
Leeds and

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
135.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
WOOLWICH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
45 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
Acacia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
CASTLE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
BURNLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
18 to 28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
St Thomas's Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
APPLEBY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Jubilee Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
AUDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
BOTTOMGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
DOCK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
129.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
Leeds and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
136.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
139.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
Navigation Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
SKIDDAW STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
136.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
LAMBETH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
126.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
ORDNANCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
HIGHER AUDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
EDEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
Paradise Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
137.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
GATE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
134.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
COPY NOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
132.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
Liverpool Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
133.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
PENDLE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
THORN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
Blackburn Enterprise Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Oak Tree Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
139.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
CROSTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
130.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
GORSE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
St Jude's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
130.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
141.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
85 to 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
LONGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
LONGTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
PATTEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
DIDSBURY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
BURNLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
HARWOOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
GATE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
EDEN STREET (NEW)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
EDEN STREET (OLD)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
ORDNANCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
"Red Route"  No Stopping at any time

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
Limited Waiting  8am - 6pm, 1 hour,  no return within 1 hour 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
No Waiting, 8am - 6pm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
Limited Waiting  8am - 6pm, 2 hours,  no return within 2 hours 



EMD: V1/16 Page 1 of 3

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for Regeneration

                  
LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Planning and Prosperity

 

DATE: 14th February 2017

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Regeneration                                     

WARD/S AFFECTED: Shear Brow                                   Audley

SUBJECT: Proposed Experimental Traffic Regulation Order – Red Route on A678 and surrounding  
                    roads.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
To inform the Executive Member for Regeneration of the proposal to introduce an experimental Traffic 
Regulation Order as detailed below and seek approval to make it:-

A678 and surrounding roads...................Red Route

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
The Executive Member:
Authorise the Director of HR, Legal & Corporate Services to make and advertise the Experimental 
Traffic Regulation Order as per the attached schedule. 

3. BACKGROUND
Since the opening of the widened alignment on Copy Nook, Bottomgate and Furthergate, parking 
issues have been experienced in the vicinity of the shops on Copy Nook. At the present time there is 
no legal remedy to prevent this or enforce against this type of parking.

Red Routes were introduced to allow for reducing congestion and controlling traffic on bus corridors in 
London. These measures eventually spread to the West Midlands and have now been included in the 
general traffic regulations released in 2016.

The proposal is to cover the main route from Larkhill, Eanam Roundabout through to Accrington Rd 
and Gorse St over this section of the Pennine Reach scheme.

In order to provide some consistency, short sections of side roads and inter-connecting roads such as 
Culshaw St and Dock St have been included in the scheme as these routes intersect the Red Routes 
at either end and also experience parking issues.

Red Routes operate as a No Stopping and No Loading restriction except in marked and signed bays 
and can be enforced by the police and via CCTV as well as by CEO’s.Page 10



EMD: V1/16 Page 2 of 3

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS
No risks arising from this proposal have been identified.  The proposals are of benefit to the social 
and economic well being of the Borough.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The proposal to make and revoke Traffic Regulation Orders requires delegated approval from the 
Executive member for Regeneration and Chief Officer.  Traffic Regulation Orders are required to be 
published in the local press and on site to comply with the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984.  
Directly affected properties are consulted in line with current procedure.

The proposal meets the requirements of the Traffic Management Act 2004 in managing the 
expeditious movement of traffic on the highway network.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The cost of making and advertising this Traffic Regulation Order will be in the region of £8000 and will 
be funded from the Pennine Reach scheme.

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The necessary legal powers to implement this scheme are within the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984.  The 
advertising of the proposals will enable  comments/objections and suggestions on how the experimental order 
may be improved through variation from members of the public as well as relevant Council highway officers.

Experimental orders are predominately to provide the Highways Authority with a proper period of time to test 
the effects of a traffic order. An experimental order enables the impact of the new restrictions to be examined 
and potentially minor changes made to address unforeseen issues more readily. For an experimental order the 
objection period is 6 months which actually allows people to raise any objections or recommendations they 
may have with knowledge of how the restriction really works. Hence the recommendation for the review after 6 
months is a reasonable and appropriate requirement although additionally the recommendation could be to 
continue with the experimental order for a further period if it was considered necessary. The order could 
actually be modified sooner than the initial 6 months depending on how it was operating and the interim 
objections and feedback that was being received.  

The experimental period will allow the Council to make necessary adjustments although it should be noted that 
every time an experimental order is modified, the 6 month objection period starts again.    

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Page 11



EMD: V1/16 Page 3 of 3

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS
Members of the public will be given the opportunity to comment on the Experimental Order during the 
first 6 months from its implementation.

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered as detailed 
in the attached briefing paper.  The recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance 
set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

VERSION: 0.01

CONTACT OFFICER: Chris Pearson

DATE: 23rd January 2017

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

Appendix 1 schedule

Appendix 2 plan

Page 12



EMD: V3/18 Page 1 of 3

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for Regeneration

LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Environment and Operations

DATE: 13th February 2019

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Regeneration                                  

WARD/S AFFECTED: Billinge and Beardwood                                   Blackburn South and Lower 
Darwen
Blackburn South East
Darwen East
Darwen South
Darwen West
Little Harwood and Whitebirk
Roe Lee
West Pennine

SUBJECT: Proposed Speed Limit Consolidation Order – various roads

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
To inform the Executive Member for Regeneration of the proposal to introduce a Speed Limit Order as 
detailed below and seek approval to make it:-

Proposed Speed Limit Order consolidation……………………………………various roads as per                   
schedule

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Executive Member:
Authorise the Director of HR, Legal & Governance to advertise the proposed Traffic Regulation Order 
as per the attached schedule and make the order should no objections be made. 

(Note that any unresolved objections will be reported to a meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee)

3. BACKGROUND
Anomalies in a 1997 Speed Limit Order were highlighted by Lancashire Police as part of their speed camera 
programme. 

There are a significant number of disparate legal orders for different speed limits across the Borough, so the 
opportunity is being taken while addressing the anomalies raised by Lancashire Police, to consolidate all the 
existing Speed Limit Orders for speeds above the National Speed Limit for Restricted Roads and below the 
National Speed Limit for Unrestricted Roads in to a single Borough-wide Order. 

This will simplify future administration and amendments and as the speed limit information will be contained in 
a single legal order will also be easier for the public to access and digest.

Note: The National Speed Limit for a Restricted Road is 30mph and the National Speed Limit for an 
Unrestricted Road is 60mph (for single carriageways) or 70mph (for dual carriageways).Page 13

Agenda Item 2



EMD: V3/18 Page 2 of 3

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS
No risks arising from this proposal have been identified.  The proposal is of benefit to the social and 
economic well being of the Borough.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The proposal to make and revoke Traffic Regulation Orders requires delegated approval from the 
Executive Member for Regeneration and Chief Officer.  Traffic Regulation Orders are required to be 
published in the local press and on site to comply with the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984.  
Directly affected properties are consulted in line with current procedure.

The proposal meets the requirements of the Traffic Management Act 2004 in managing the 
expeditious movement of traffic on the highway network.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
    The cost of making and advertising this Traffic Regulation Order will be approximately £8000 and will 

be funded from the Traffic and Transportation element of the Highways Maintenance budget.

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The necessary legal powers to implement this scheme are within the Road Traffic Regulations Act 
1984 under Section 84 and Part III of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as amended, 
and all other enabling powers and in accordance with its duty with Section 122 of the said Act.
  
The advertising of the proposals will provide the public the opportunity to comment/object which will 
be considered appropriately by officers. Any unresolved objections will be reported to a meeting of the 
Planning and Highways Committee and then brought back for a decision by the Executive Member.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS
Members of the public will be given the opportunity to object to or comment on the proposal following
statutory advertising on site and in the local newspaper.  

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Page 14



EMD: V3/18 Page 3 of 3

Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

VERSION: 1

CONTACT OFFICER: Gina Lambert, George Bell

DATE: 13th February 2019

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

Appendix 1 -  schedule

Appendix 2a,b,c -  plans

Page 15



Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.  

The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs.

Service area 
& dept. Traffic Date the activity will 

be implemented 13/03/2019

 Brief 
description 
of activity

Proposed 30+ Speed Limit Consolidation Order

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA
Checklist question

Answers 
favouring not 
doing an EIA

Does this activity involve any of the following:
- Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes☐  Yes
- Change to existing Council policy/strategy

☒  No

☐  Yes Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? ☒  No

☐  No
☐  Not sure

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? ☒  Yes

Does this activity:
☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act 
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not 
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low)

☒  No

FOR =0 TOTAL AGAINST =6

Will you now be completing an EIA? ☐ Yes ☒ No
The EIA toolkit can be found here 

Assessment Lead Signature

E&D Lead Signature Gwen Kinloch

Date 15/02/2019

Page 16

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584


Page 1 of 8

SCHEDULES

40 MPH SPEED RESTRICTION

Street Side Location
A6077/B6232 GUIDE, No Side 

Specified
from a point 54 metres south of its junction with Blackamoor Road to 
a point 100 metres southeast of its junction with Belthorn Road

BATRIDGE ROAD TURTON, No Side 
Specified

For its entire length 

BELTHORN ROAD, GUIDE, No Side 
Specified

from its junction with the Centreline of Haslingden Road for a 
distance of 562 metres in a southeasterly direction

BILLINGE END ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 300 metres west of its junction with Woodgates Road 
for a distance of 500 metres in a westerly direction

BLACKBURN ROAD TURTON / 
ROMAN ROAD DARWEN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 19.5 metres south of the southerly boundary of 9 
Blacksnape Road to a point 96 metres north of its junction with the 
Centreline of Hob Lane

BOG HEIGHT ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with Broken Stone Road for a distance of 645 
metres in an easterly then southerly direction

BOLTON ROAD, DARWEN, No Side 
Specified

from a point 82 metres south of the gable of No. 686 Bolton Road to 
a point 71 metres south of its junction with the Centreline of Woodlea 
Chase

BROADHEAD ROAD 
EDGWORTH, 

both From a point 430 metres north of its junction with Bury Road in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 685 metres

BROKEN STONE ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with Horden Rake to a point 50 metres west of its 
junction with the centreline of Gib Lane

No Side 
Specified

From a point 50 metres east of the centreline of Gib Lane to its 
junction with Bog Height Road

BROWNHILL DRIVE 
BLACKBURN, 

both from a point 156 metres east of its junction with the Centreline of 
Emerald Avenue to a point 66 metres east of ts junction with the 
Centreline of Cornelian Street

BURY ROAD EDGWORTH, No Side 
Specified

From the boundary with the Metropoloitan Borough of Bolton in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 1207 metres

CHAPELTOWN ROAD 
CHAPELTOWN, 

No Side 
Specified

From the boundary with the Metropolitan Borough of Bolton in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 900 metres

ECCLESHILL LINK ROAD & 
A666/M65 LINK ROAD, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with Greenbank Terrace to its junction with A666 
Blackburn Road, including the roundabout under the M65 Motorway.

GREENS ARMS ROAD 
TURTON, 

No Side 
Specified

From a point 50 metres north-west of its junction with the Centreline 
of Batridge Road in a south easterly direction for a distance of 1156 
metres

HORDEN RAKE BLACKBURN, No Side 
Specified

From its junction with Horden View to its junction with Broken 
Stone Road

JOHNSON ROAD 
HODDLESDEN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 534.5 metres east of its junction with the Centreline of 
Roman Road for a distance of 826 metres in a southeasterly direction

Page 17



Page 2 of 8

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with the Centreline of Roman Road to a point 93.5 
metres east of its junction with the Centreline of Roman Road

MOORSIDE ROAD 
EDGWORTH, 

No Side 
Specified

From its junction with the Centreline of Roman Road in an easterly 
direction for a distance of 1208 metres

PRESTON OLD ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 310 metres south-west of its junction with Pleasington 
Road in a south-westerly direction for a distance of 397 metres 
(amended by LCC72a)

ROMAN ROAD DARWEN, No Side 
Specified

from a point 40 metres north-west of its junction with the Centreline 
of Harwood's Lane to a point 89 metres south-east of its junction 
with the Centreline of Coniston Drive

No Side 
Specified

from a point 246 metres south of its junction with the Centreline of 
Pickering Fold to a point 360 metres north-west of its junction with 
the Centreline of Pothouse Lane

SCHOOL LANE, GUIDE, No Side 
Specified

from a point 274 metres east of its junction with the Centreline of 
Copster Hill Close for a distance of 267 metres in an easterly 
direction.

50 MPH SPEED RESTRICTION

Street Side Location
A6119 - WHITEBIRK DRIVE / 
BROWNHILL DRIVE, 

both from a point 476 metres south-east of its junction with the Centreline 
of Philips Road (the Borough Boundary) to a point 250 metres east of 
its junction with the Centreline of Whitebirk Road

A6119 - YEW TREE DRIVE / 
RAMSGREAVE DRIVE, 

No Side 
Specified

eastbound carriageway from its junction with the Centreline of 
Preston New Road to a point 11 metres west of its junction with the 
Centreline of Broadway

No Side 
Specified

westbound carriageway from a point 268 metres east of its junction 
with the Centreline of Pleckgate Road to its junction with the 
Centreline of Preston New Road

A666 BOLTON ROAD DARWEN, No Side 
Specified

from a point 71 metres south of its junction with the Centreline of 
Woodlea Chase in a southerly direction to the Bolton Boundary, 
approximately 195 metres south of Stones Bank Road south

BELMONT ROAD, No Side 
Specified

From a point 335 metres south east of its junction with Scout Road to 
a point 588 metres south east of its junction with the Centreline of 
Egerton Road

BELMONT ROAD BELMONT, No Side 
Specified

From a point 1342 metres north west of its junction with Crookfield 
Road to a point 40 metres south east of its junction with Longworth 
Road North

CROOKFIELD 
ROAD/TOCKHOLES ROAD 
TOCKHOLES, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with the Centreline of Belmont Road (A675) for a 
distance of 2550 metres in a north easterly then northerly direction

Page 18



Page 3 of 8

RESTRICTED ROAD

Street Side Location
JOHNSON ROAD 
HODDLESDEN, 

No Side 
Specified

From a point 93.5 metres east of its junction with the centreline of 
Roman Road for a distance of 444 metres in an easterly direction

PLEASINGTON ROAD AND 
SANDY LANE BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 151 metres south of its junction with the Centreline of 
Links Lane to a point 169 metres north of its junction with the 
Centreline of Priory Close

PRESTON NEW ROAD (A.677), No Side 
Specified

from a point 12 metres south-east of its junction with Yew Tree Drive 
to a point 51 metres north-west of its junction with Meins Road, a 
distance of approximately 1,130 metres

PRESTON OLD ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 336 yards south-west of its junction with Pleasington 
Road in a south-westerly direction for a distance of 54 yards

RIVINGTON ROAD BELMONT, No Side 
Specified

From its junction with High Street For a distance of 195 metres in a 
westerly direction

ROMAN ROAD DARWEN, No Side 
Specified

from a point 360 metres north-west of its junction with the Centreline 
of Pothouse Lane to a point 89 metres south-east of its junction with 
the Centreline of Coniston Drive

TOCKHOLES ROAD 
TOCKHOLES, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 580 metres south of its junction with Broken Stone 
Road to a point 150 metres south of its junction with Old School 
Lane

30 MPH SPEED RESTRICTION

Street Side Location
BILLINGE END ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 45 metres west of its junction with Woodgates Road for 
a distance of 255 metres in a westerly direction

BOG HEIGHT ROAD 
BLACKBURN, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 105 metres north of the centreline of Meadow Head 
Lane to a point 162 metres west of the centreline of Beech Grove

BROADHEAD ROAD 
EDGWORTH, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 30 metres north of its junction with Moorside Road for a 
distance of 150 metres in a northerly direction

LONG HEY LANE 
HODDLESDEN, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with Queen Street, Hoddlesden to a point 200 
metres north of Chapel Corner

LOWER ECCLESHILL ROAD 
LOWER DARWEN, 

No Side 
Specified

from its junction with the Eccleshill Link Road to a point 110 metres 
north of its junction with Hollins Grove Street

MEINS ROAD BLACKBURN, No Side 
Specified

from a point 850 metres west of its junction with Preston New Road 
for a distance of 470 metres in a westerly direction

RIVINGTON ROAD BELMONT, No Side 
Specified

from a point 195 metres west of the junctiion with High Street for a 
distance of 190 metres in a westerly direction

TOCKHOLES ROAD 
TOCKHOLES, 

No Side 
Specified

from a point 150 metres south of Old School Lane for a distance of 
210 metres in a southerly direction

Page 19



Page 4 of 8

SCHEDULE OF REVOCATIONS
Items to be removed from the following orders:

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN (BROADHEAD ROAD, EDGWORTH) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 1996
30 MPH Speed Restriction

BROADHEAD ROAD from a point 30 metres north of its junction with Moorside Road for a 
distance of 150 metres in a northerly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN (TOCKHOLES ROAD, TOCKHOLES) (30 MPH SPEED RESTRICTION 
AND REVOCATION) ORDER 1996
30 MPH Speed Restriction

TOCKHOLES ROAD from a point 580 metres south of its junction with Broken Stone Road 
to a point 360 metres south of its junction with Old School Lane

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (40 MPH SPEED RESTRICTION AND 
REVOCATION) ORDER 1997
40 MPH Speed Restriction

A6177/B6232 
HASLINGDEN ROAD

from a point 100 metres south-east of its junction with Belthorn Road 
(new junction) to its junction with Blackamoor Road

ECCLESHILL LINK 
ROAD & A666/M65 
LINK ROAD

from its junction with Greenbank Terrace to its junction with A666 
Blackburn Road, including the roundabout under the M65 Motorway.

HASLINGDEN ROAD, 
BLACKBURN

from a point 65 metres southeast of its junction with Old Bank Lane to 
a point 20 metres northwest of the northwesterly gable of 328 
Haslingden Road

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (A666 BOLTON ROAD, DARWEN) (50 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2002
50 MPH Speed Restriction

A666 BOLTON ROAD from a point of the existing 40mph limit, approximately 66 metres 
south of Woodlea Chase in a southerly direction to the Bolton 
Boundary, approximately 195 metres south of Stones Bank Road south

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (A666, BULL HILL, BOLTON ROAD, 
DARWEN)(30MPH SPEED RESTICTION AND REVOCATION) ORDER 2007
30 MPH Speed Restriction

A666 BULL HILL from a point 263 metres south of its junction with Jacks Key Drive to a 
point 70 metres south of its junction with Woodlea Chase

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (BILLINGE END ROAD, BLACKBURN) (30 MPH 
SPEED RESTRICTION) ORDER 2000
30 MPH Speed Restriction

BILLINGE END ROAD from a point 45 metres west of its junction with Woodgates Road for a 
distance of 255 metres in a westerly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (BILLINGE END ROAD, BLACKBURN) (40 MPH 
SPEED RESTRICTION) ORDER 2000
40 MPH Speed Restriction

BILLINGE END ROAD from a point 300 metres west of its junction with Woodgates Road for 
a distance of 500 metres in a westerly direction

Page 20



Page 5 of 8

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (BLACKBURN ROAD, EDGWORTH) (40 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2007
40 MPH Speed Restriction

BLACKBURN ROAD, 
EDGWORTH

from a point 100 metres south of the Crown & Thistle PH for a 
distance of 1749 metres in a southerly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (BURY ROAD, EDGWORTH) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2005
30 MPH Speed Restriction

BURY ROAD From a point at its junction with Broadhead Road for a distance of 480 
metres in a south-easterly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (JOHNSON ROAD, ECCLESHILL)(30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2007
30 MPH Speed Restriction

JOHNSON ROAD From its junction with Roman Road for a distance of 550 metres in an 
easterly direction

40 MPH Speed Restriction
JOHNSON STREET from a point 550 metres east of its junction with Roman Road to a 

point 1350 metres east of its junction with Roman Road (amendment 
from 2003 order)

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (LONG HEY LANE, PICKUP BANK) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 1999
30 MPH Speed Restriction

LONG HEY LANE from its junction with Queen Street, Hoddlesden to a point 200 metres 
north of Chapel Corner

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (LOWER ECCLESHILL ROAD) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 1999
30 MPH Speed Restriction

LOWER ECCLESHILL 
ROAD

from its junction with the Eccleshill Link Road to a point 110 metres 
north of its junction with Hollins Grove Street

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (MEINS ROAD, BLACKBURN) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2005
30 MPH Speed Restriction

MEINS ROAD from a point 850 metres west of its junction with Preston New Road 
for a distance of 470 metres in a westerly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (RIVINGTON ROAD, BELMONT) (30 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2009
30 MPH Speed Restriction

RIVINGTON ROAD From its junction with High Street For a distance of 384 metres in a 
westerly direction

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (ROMAN ROAD, BLACKBURN) (40 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 1998
40 MPH Speed Restriction

ROMAN ROAD from a point 100 metres south of its junction with Pickering Fold for a 
distance of 800 metres in a southerly direction

Page 21



Page 6 of 8

The Borough of Blackburn with Darwen (Roman Road, Darwen) (30 MPH and 40 MPH speed restriction and 
revocation) Order 2003
30 MPH Speed Restriction

ROMAN ROAD from a point 50 metres south of its junction with Coniston Drive to a 
point 360 metres north-west of its junction with Pot House Lane

40 MPH Speed Restriction
ROMAN ROAD from its junction with Harwood's Lane to a point 50 metres south of 

its junction with Coniston Drive

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (ROMAN ROAD, DARWEN) (40 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 2002
40 MPH Speed Restriction

ROMAN ROAD from a point approximately 100 metres south of the southerly 
boundary of 9 Blacksnape Road for a distance of approximately 1700 
metres in a southerly direction. (corresponding with a point 
approximately 100 metres south of the Crown and Thistle PH)

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (ROMAN ROAD, ECCLESHILL) (40 MPH SPEED 
RESTRICTION) ORDER 1999
40 MPH Speed Restriction

ROMAN ROAD from a point 900 metres south of its junction with Pickering Fold to a 
point 350 metres north-west of its junction with Pothouse Lane

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (SCHOOL LANE AND LOTTICE LANE, GUIDE) (40 
MPH SPEED RESTRICTION AND REVOCATION) ORDER 1997
40 MPH Speed Restriction

SCHOOL LANE AND 
LOTTICE LANE

from a point 410 metres east of its junction with Haslingden Road for 
a distance of 500 metres in an easterly direction. (as amended by 
01/14)

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (VARIOUS STREETS IN BELMONT, BLACKBURN) 
(50 MPH SPEED LIMIT CLEARWAYS AND REVOCATION) ORDER 2017
24 hour clearway

BELMONT ROAD From a point 1342 metres north west of its junction with Crookfield 
Road to a point 40 metres south east of its junction with Longworth 
Road North

From a point 690 metres south east of its junction with Scout Road to 
a point 636 metres south east of of its junctiion with Egerton Road

50 MPH Speed Restriction

BELMONT ROAD From a point 335 metres south east of its junction with Scout Road to 
a point 636 metres south east of its junction with Egerton Road

From a point 1342 metres north west of its junction with Crookfield 
Road to a point 40 metres south east of its junction with Longworth 
Road North

CROOKFIELD 
ROAD/TOCKHOLES 
ROAD

From its junction with Belmont Road (A675) for a distance of 2500 
metres in a north easterly then northerly direction

Page 22



Page 7 of 8

THE BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN (VARIOUS STREETS IN EDGWORTH AND 
CHAPELTOWN, BLACKBURN) (40MPH SPEED LIMIT) ORDER 2017
40 MPH Speed Restriction

BATRIDGE ROAD For its entire length 

BROADHEAD ROAD From a point 430 metres north of its junction with Bury Road in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 685 metres

BURY ROAD From the boundary with the Metropoloitan Borough of Bolton in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 1320 metres

CHAPELTOWN ROAD From the boundary with the Metropolitan Borough of Bolton in a 
northerly direction for a distance of 900 metres

GREENS ARMS ROAD From a point 50 metres north of its junction with Batridge Road in a 
south easterly direction for a distance of 1150 metres

MOORSIDE ROAD From its junction with Roman Road in an easterly direction for a 
distance of 1190 metres

THE COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN (40 MPH SPEED LIMIT) (NO. 1) ORDER 1963
40 MPH Speed Restriction

PRESTON NEW ROAD 
(A.677)

from a point 13 yards south-east of its junction with Yew Tree Drive 
to a point 55 yards north-west of its junction with Meins Road, a 
distance of approximately 1,222 yards.

THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF LANCASTER (RESTRICTED ROADS) (NO. 1) ORDER 1970
Restricted Road

PLEASINGTON ROAD 
AND SANDY LANE

from a point 175 yards north of Walk Mill Bridge to a point 440 yards 
north of the junction with Tongue Hill Crescent, a distance measured 
along the said length of road of approximately 1,050 yards

THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF LANCASTER (RESTRICTED ROADS) (NO. 9) ORDER 1972
Restricted Road

PRESTON OLD ROAD from a point 336 yards south-west of its junction with Pleasington 
Road in a south-westerly direction for a distance of 54 yards

THE COUNTY OF BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN (RESTRICTED ROADS) (NO. 1) ORDER 1972
Restricted Road

HEYS LANE that length of Heys Lane from the commencement of the existing 
30m.p.h speed limit to the Borough Boundary

THE LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (40 MPH SPEED LIMIT) (NO. 2) ORDER 1967
40 MPH Speed Restriction

PRESTON OLD ROAD from a point 336 yards south-west of its junction with Pleasington 
Road in a south-westerly direction for a distance of 430 yards 
(amended by LCC72a)

THE LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (BELTHORN ROAD, GUIDE AND BELTHORN, BOROUGHS 
OF BLACKBURN AND HYNDBURN) (40 MPH SPEED LIMIT) ORDER 1989
40 MPH Speed Restriction

Page 23



Page 8 of 8

BELTHORN ROAD, 
GUIDE

from a point 130 metres southeast of its junction with B6232 
Haslingden Road for a distance of 680 metres in a southeasterly 
direction

The Trunk Roads (50 MPH Speed Limit) (No 1) Order 1975
50 MPH Speed Restriction

A6119 - YEW TREE 
DRIVE / 
RAMSGREAVE DRIVE

from its junction with Preston New Road (A677) to the roundabout 
forming its junction with Whalley New Road at Brownhill

Page 24



GUIDE

M65

EWOOD

M65 Jct 4

A6119

M65 Jct 6

BLACKBURN

TOWN

CENTRE

A6119

PLEASINGTON

M65

( c )  C r o w n  C o p y r ig h t. All r ights  reserved.

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

30 mph Speed Restriction

40 MPH Speed Restriction

50 MPH Speed Restriction

Proposed 30+ speed Limit 

Consolidation Order

13/02/2019

1 : 30000

This  m ap is  reproduced f rom  Ordnance Survey  

m aterial with the perm iss ion of  Ordnance Survey  

on behalf  of  the

C ontroller of  H er Majes ty 's  Stationery  Off ice 

+ C rown C opy right.  

U nauthorised reproduc t ion infringes  Crown

copy right and m ay  lead to prosecution or civ il

proceedings. 

Licence N o: 100019493 2017

GAL

P
age 25



YATE &

PICKUP

BANK

M65

M65 Jct 4

DARWEN

TOCKHOLES

A666

A675

EDGWORTH

M65

( c )  C r o w n  C o p y r ig h t. All r ights  reserved.

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

30 mph Speed Restriction

40 MPH Speed Restriction

50 MPH Speed Restriction

Proposed 30+ speed Limit 

Consolidation Order

13/02/2019

1 : 30000

This  m ap is  reproduced f rom  Ordnance Survey  

m aterial with the perm iss ion of  Ordnance Survey  

on behalf  of  the

C ontroller of  H er Majes ty 's  Stationery  Off ice 

+ C rown C opy right.  

U nauthorised reproduc t ion infringes  Crown

copy right and m ay  lead to prosecution or civ il

proceedings. 

Licence N o: 100019493 2017

GAL

P
age 26



A666

BELMONT

A675

EGERTON

EDGWORTH

( c )  C r o w n  C o p y r ig h t. All r ights  reserved.

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

30 mph Speed Restriction

40 MPH Speed Restriction

50 MPH Speed Restriction

Proposed 30+ speed Limit 

Consolidation Order

13/02/2019

1 : 30000

This  m ap is  reproduced f rom  Ordnance Survey  

m aterial with the perm iss ion of  Ordnance Survey  

on behalf  of  the

C ontroller of  H er Majes ty 's  Stationery  Off ice 

+ C rown C opy right.  

U nauthorised reproduc t ion infringes  Crown

copy right and m ay  lead to prosecution or civ il

proceedings. 

Licence N o: 100019493 2017

GAL

P
age 27



EMD: V3/18 Page 1 of 3

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for Resources

                  
LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Growth and Development

  

DATE: 18/01/19

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Leisure Culture and Young People                                  Regeneration

WARD/S AFFECTED: Darwen West                                   Blackburn Central

SUBJECT: LED Lighting for Darwen Leisure Centre and Blackburn Market

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The lighting around the pools at Darwen Leisure Centre and above the public walkways at Blackburn 
Market is failing and needs to be replaced.  Replacement with LEDs would reduce running and 
maintenance costs.  In using less electricity, LEDs cut carbon emissions and so it is proposed that the 
cost of the replacements is met from the carbon management programme capital budget.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Executive Member:

I. Approves the use of the carbon management programme budget to replace the lighting at 
Darwen Leisure Centre;

II. Approves the use of the carbon management programme budget to replace the lighting at 
Blackburn Market

3. BACKGROUND
The lighting proposed for replacement at Darwen Leisure Centre and Blackburn Market has been in 
use since the sites opened, making it almost 10 and 8 years old respectively.  The LEDs that would 
be installed as replacements have a luminaire output guaranteed at 60,000 hours before any 
degradation of light output  – 12 years for both sites – and cut electricity consumption, based on like 
for like use, by around 30%.  LEDs are expected to be maintenance-free for their lifetime.

Replacement is becoming pressing, particularly at Darwen Leisure Centre where poor lighting levels 
can compromise the safety of pool users.

The lights around both large and small pools at Darwen Leisure Centre are now failing with increased 
frequency, displaying various and numerous faults.  Each time the seal around a lamp is broken to 
make repairs the interior is exposed to chlorine-filled air that accelerates the lamp’s corrosion and 
failure.  When a lamp fails it compromises pool-user safety as it reduces the lifeguards’ ability to see 
people in the water.

LED technology is now sufficiently advanced to enable manufacturers to design luminaires suitable 
for use in a pool environment and also provide similar light levels as the existing lamps.

Page 28

Agenda Item 3



EMD: V3/18 Page 2 of 3

It is proposed to replace all of the existing lamps with LEDs in one scheme, rather than replace each 
unit as it fails.  This ensures that the correct lighting levels are provided for the pool environment and 
reduces the overall cost of replacement.

The lamps that light the public walkways in Blackburn Market have been failing for over two years.  
The cost of repairs is now around £1,000 pa and expected to rise as more repairs are required.  It is 
proposed to replace all of the lamps at the same time to keep installation costs to a minimum.

The estimated scheme costs and expected savings from each scheme are set out below;

Electricity Reduction pa
Location

Fittings and 
Installation kWh Cost

Maintenance 
Saving pa

Payback 
(Years)

Darwen Leisure Centre £31,703 30,200 £3,785 £1,000 6.6
Blackburn Market £43,892 34,000 £4,000 £1,000 8.7
Totals £75,595 64,200 £7,785 £2,000 7.7

The expected payback calculation takes no account of expected electricity price raises.

All installation work and equipment testing would be carried out by the Council’s own property 
maintenance staff, and completed no later than the first quarter of 2019/20.

There are insufficient resources in the property maintenance budgets to meet the cost of the lighting 
replacement.  Both schemes will achieve energy efficiencies and carbon reduction and so it is 
proposed they be met from the Council’s carbon management programme budget.  This will reduce 
the finance available for solar PV installation, which is the subject of a separate report, but due to the 
gradually more pressing need for replacement lighting at these sites, these schemes need to be given 
priority.

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS
The Maintenance Team has established that suitable lighting units are available for both sites and 
have investigated potential costs of the fittings and associated installation.

The schemes would improve lighting at both sites, reduce running costs (and carbon emissions) and 
cut maintenance costs.

The schemes have a payback of over 7 to 8 years.

The balance of the carbon management programme budget is sufficient to cover the cost of both 
schemes.

The frequency with which the lights are failing, particularly at Darwen Leisure Centre, may lead to 
customer dissatisfaction with and complaints about the lighting conditions.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The proposal contributes to the Council’s carbon reduction targets.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The estimated cost of the scheme is £75,595.  The scheme will result in savings of £3,785 pa on 
electricity bills at Darwen Leisure Centre and £4,000 at Blackburn Market.  Maintenance costs of 
£1,000 at each site are expected to be saved each year.

Page 29



EMD: V3/18 Page 3 of 3

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council’s Contract Procurement Procedure rules will be followed in getting quotes for the 
materials. The value of the Procurement will be below the threshold for the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 to apply. Contracts for the supply and installation shall be in an approved form.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Staff time has been required to develop both lighting schemes and will be needed to oversee 
implementation of the scheme.

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS
There have been no consultations on this proposal.  There have been discussions between Leisure 
Centre and Maintenance staff.

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

VERSION: 1

CONTACT OFFICER: Gwen Kinloch

DATE: 18/01/19

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

None

Page 30



Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.  

The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs.

Service area 
& dept. Growth & Development Date the activity will 

be implemented 11/02/2019

 
Brief 
description 
of activity

Replacement of lighting at Darwen Leisure Centre and Blackburn Market with LEDs

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA
Checklist question

Answers 
favouring not 
doing an EIA

Does this activity involve any of the following:
- Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes☐  Yes
- Change to existing Council policy/strategy

☒  No

☐  Yes Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? ☒  No

☐  No
☐  Not sure

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? ☒  Yes

Does this activity:
☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act 
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not 
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low)

☒  No

FOR = 0 TOTAL AGAINST = 6

Will you now be completing an EIA? ☐ Yes ☒ No
The EIA toolkit can be found here 

Assessment Lead Signature Gwen Kinloch

Checked by departmental  
E&D Lead ☒ Yes ☐ No

Date 21/01/2019

Page 31

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584


EMD: V3/18 Page 1 of 4

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for Health and Adult Social 

Care

LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Adult Services & Prevention

DATE: Insert

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Health and Adult Social Care                                  

WARD/S AFFECTED: All                                   

SUBJECT: St Aiden’s Short Break Service – Building Remodelling.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

St Aiden’s is a Short Break Service for Adults who have a Learning Disability and Autism. The resource 
comprises of six bedrooms and an apartment. The current facilities do not accommodate safely the needs of 
more complex people with behavioural issues for which there is a growing demand for support. 

As such, commissioners are needing to purchase expensive out of borough services when, with some 
investment people could be accommodated and appropriately cared for within St Aiden’s. 

This proposal presents a redesign of the apartment in line with Best Practice and will provide an appropriate 
environment for crisis and planned short break care for people with very complex challenging needs.  

This proposal is supported by a further report. This will be presented for a decision by the Executive Member 
for Health & Adult Social Care in March 2019. This report will outline an aligned plan to review and enhance 
the current staffing available at St Aiden’s to reduce the reliance on expensive, external commissions. 

   RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Executive Member:

1) Approves the Extension and redesign of St Aiden’s.
2) Supports the expenditure from DFG Capital Grant.

3. BACKGROUND

St Aiden’s is a residential short term break service that provides care to adults with learning disabilities and 
autism. St Aiden’s existing layout is ‘L-shaped’ with 6 bedrooms with en-suite (1 bedroom with bath facilities), 
one apartment, communal kitchen, 2 lounges, visitor/communal WC, laundry and store, staff accommodation 
and office.  

All bedrooms are located along the external wall to maximise natural light in to the rooms.  The existing 
apartment is located to the far end of the ‘L-shaped’, building with separate double door access point.  
Currently service users enter to the main entrance of the building.  
Over the last six months, the team at St Aiden’s has worked hard to increase occupancy figures for short 
breaks as the building was only averaging 65% use. This was hard to understand given the assessed needs of Page 32

Agenda Item 4



EMD: V3/18 Page 2 of 4

service users in the Borough and the distribution of Respite Vouchers. 
The under occupancy is related to two areas, the physical layout of the estate to appropriately accommodate 
crisis and planned respite for service users that require behavioural interventions to be managed safely and 
also current staffing levels (the latter will be addressed in a separate report). 

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS

The demand for services for people with complex needs is increasing and commissioners are often having to 
resort to commissioning high cost, out of Borough, or one to one packages with specialist providers. This is 
due to the current in house offer not being fit for purpose. 

Preventing admissions to long term care and hospital is a key component to the directorates demand 
management strategy and it is important for complex people living within families to be able to access regular 
breaks from demanding caring roles.

As part of the Boroughs strategic vision, we are striving to provide services as close to people’s home and 
community. 

Best practice in managing service users with learning disability and autism, has highlighted that need for 
people to be cared for in environments that are conducive to managing their behaviour safely. This relates to 
providing – 

 low stimulus design schemes.
 Robust build and furniture that is resistant to damage.
 Ensuring that the space where people are cared for have two exits.
 Areas where staff can break out and where service users can be safely left to de-escalate any 

behaviours whilst being observed. 
 Floor space areas that facilitate any physical intervention that is required. 
 Separate entrance with own staffing facilities but with access to additional staffing as required. 
 Outside space to offer opportunities to exercise and relax. 

In recognition of the limitations of what St Aiden’s can currently offer, a small project group including specialist 
input from the Learning Disability Health Team, have worked with the Council’s Architects to re design the 
current apartment to accommodate the best practice standards described above.  

The Strategic Commissioning Team have been tracking demand for specialist respite environments and care 
to support the need for the service and to support the business decision to provide these services in-house to 
ensure there is a responsive, safe quality service.  The proposal ensures that the council has a safety net to 
provide emergency and planned care for some of its most vulnerable people. 

This remodelling proposal will be accompanied by a proposal to enhance the staffing structure at St Aiden’s as 
currently externally commissioned staff from private agencies are needed to supplement the staffing for 
individual service users who are safe to accommodate within the existing apartment.  

The re design would comprise of a modest 3m extension to the existing apartment, internal reconfiguration of 
space and the creation of a separate entrance and parking space from the adjacent road. 

The design creates a flexible space that can still be linked and used as part of the main buildings as required.

Planning permission has been submitted and the current schedule would look for completion of the works 
July/August 19.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The provision of emergency and short break service within the Borough is consistent with our demand 
management policies and supports families of young people transitioning into adulthood as per SEND strategy. 

The provision would seek to address the needs of people currently included in the Transforming Care National 
strategy and the future Integrated Care System Commissioning Strategy. Page 33



EMD: V3/18 Page 3 of 4

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Capital funding is earmarked from within the total Disabled Facilities Grant allocation  to support the build and 
the design requirements up to the value of £240k. 

Remodelling of the staffing is being evaluated against current spend with external providers to create Best 
Value.  

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Appropriate Planning Applications are in place and are being managed by the Growth and Development 
Department.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The current project group will oversee the development with the support of appropriate council officers from the 
Growth and Development portfolio. 

The DFG work will be carried out internally by BwD CBT Team.   

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS

As part of the Planning Application, normal consultation will be carried out. 
Ward Councillors consulted as part of the process.  

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

Page 34



EMD: V3/18 Page 4 of 4

VERSION: 1

CONTACT OFFICER: Suzanne Kinder

DATE: 30th January 2019

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

Page 35



Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.  

The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs.

Service area 
& dept. Adults Social Care Date the activity will 

be implemented 01/04/2019

 
Brief 
description 
of activity

Extension to St Aiden’s Short Break Service to facilitate short breaks for people with complex 
health and social care needs (primarily those with Autism). 

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA
Checklist question

Answers 
favouring not 
doing an EIA

Does this activity involve any of the following:
- Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes☐  Yes
- Change to existing Council policy/strategy

☒  No

☐  Yes Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? ☒  No

☐  No
☐  Not sure

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? ☒  Yes

Does this activity:
☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act 
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not 
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low)

☒  No

FOR =0 TOTAL AGAINST =6

Will you now be completing an EIA? ☐ Yes ☒ No
The EIA toolkit can be found here 

Assessment Lead Signature

Checked by departmental  
E&D Lead ☒ Yes ☐ No

Date 12/02/2019

Page 36

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584


Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0
Page 37


	Agenda
	1 Proposed Traffic Regulation Order - Red Route on A678 and surrounding roads
	Proposed TRO - Red Route EIA
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	Appendix 3

	2 Speed Limit Consolidation Order
	Speed Limit Consolidation Order EIA
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	3 LED Lighting Schemes Darwen
	LED Lighting Schemes Darwen EIA

	4 St.Aidans Complex Need Unit
	Extension to St Aiden's Short Break Service EIA


